Public Document Pack

RUSHMOOR BOROUGH COUNCIL

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

at the Council Offices, Farnborough on
Thursday, 1st August, 2024 at 7.00 pm

To:

Clir Halleh Koohestani (Chairman)
Clir Nadia Martin (Vice-Chairman)
Clir S. Trussler (Vice-Chairman)

CllIr Leola Card
ClIr A.H. Crawford
Cllr P.J. Cullum
Clir Thomas Day
Cllr C.P. Grattan
Clir G.B. Lyon
CliIr Bill O'Donovan
Cllr M.J. Tennant

Standing Deputy
Clir C.W. Card

Clir T.W. Mitchell
Clir Clir M.D. Smith
CliIr Clir Sarah Spall
Clir Jacqui Vosper
CliIr lIvan Whitmee

Enquiries regarding this agenda should be referred to the Administrator, Adele
Taylor, Democratic Services, Tel. (01252) 398831, Email.
adele.taylor@rushmoor.gov.uk.




AGENDA
MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING - (Pages 1 - 4)
To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 13th June, 2024 (copy attached).

DELIVERY OF KEY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES - RUSHMOOR BOROUGH
COUNCIL & SERCO IN PARTNERSHIP - (Pages 5 - 24)

To receive the 2023/24 Annual Report (copy attached) from SERCO on their
activities during the year. The report covers SERCOs purpose, vision, mission and
values, alongside details of performance in the key areas of refuse and recycling and
management of street cleansing and grounds maintenance

The item will be introduced by Rushmoor’s Environmental Contracts Service
Manager, Ruth Whaymand and representatives from SERCO, including Aaron
Straker, Contract Manager.

WORK PLAN - (Pages 25 - 32)

To consider the Work Plan for the 2023/24 Municipal Year (copy attached).

MEETING REPRESENTATION

Members of the public may ask to speak at the meeting on any of the items on the
agenda by writing to the Committee Administrator at the Council Offices,
Farnborough by 5.00 pm two working days prior to the meeting.

Applications for items to be considered for the next meeting must be received in
writing to the Committee Administrator fifteen working days prior to the meeting.




AGENDA ITEM No. 1

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

Meeting held on Thursday, 13th June, 2024 at the Council Offices, Farnborough at
7.00 pm.

Voting Members
Cllr Halleh Koohestani (Chairman)
Cllr Nadia Matrtin (Vice-Chairman)
ClIr S. Trussler (Vice-Chairman)

CllIr Leola Card
ClIr A.H. Crawford
Cllr P.J. Cullum
Cllr Thomas Day
Cllr C.P. Grattan
Cllr G.B. Lyon
ClIr Bill O'Donovan
Cllir M.J. Tennant

APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN

RESOLVED: That Clirs. Nadia Martin and S. Trussler be appointed as Vice-
Chairmen of the Committee for the 2024/25 Municipal Year.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting held on 27th March, 2024 were agreed as a correct
record.

REGISTERED PROVIDERS TASK AND FINISH GROUP - ANNUAL REPORT
2023/24

The Committee welcomed, Tim Mills, Executive Head of Property and Growth, Zoe
Paine, Strategy and Enabling Manager, and Sarah Clark, Strategic Housing Officer,
who were in attendance to provide the Registered Providers Task and Finish Group
2023/24 Annual Report. Report No. PG2418, set out the purpose of the Group,
which allowed Members to monitor the performance of the local Registered
Providers and helped build working relationships to resolve residents issues.
Outlined in the Report were areas that were working well, where there was cause for
concern and any issues that needed to be monitored.

During 2023/24 the Group had met with A2 Dominion, VIVID Homes and Riverside
Group. It was also noted that the team had extended an invite to Vivo/Pinnacle, who
managed army accommodation situated within the Borough, however a response
had not been forthcoming and this had been escalated to senior management based
at the Aldershot Garrison to assist in setting up a meeting.

-1-
Page 1



Following a discussion, the Committee identified a number of points, these included:

e Provision on a direct line to all registered housing providers, similar to that set
up with VIVID

e A list of contacts for each provider, including Area Managers and Chief
Executive Officers

e Data on retrofitting, including insulation — what had been done and where?

e Better understanding of vacancies within the military area

e Request to meet with the larger providers more frequently to ensure continuity
and ease of holding to account

e Data on the number of complaints received by each provider and the nature of
the complaints, damp/mould etc.

e Provision of a schedule of who has been seen in recent years, to help guide
the discussion on who should be seen in 2024/25 (VIVID seen every year)

e Use of a questionnaire for smaller providers to help keep a watching brief on
the current situation and highlight areas of concern should they arise

e Better understanding of service level agreements (SLA) on response times to
customer queries/complaints

In response to the issues engaging with Vivo/Pinnacle, it was recommended that a
letter be written to the Defence Select Committee and future Veterans Minister
raising the issue and asking for support.

The recommendations set out in the Report were ENDORSED and the Committee
felt that developing a more strategic relationship with the Registered Providers would
help understand the providers business objectives and how they aligned with the
Council’s priorities.

HOUSING AND HOMELESSNESS PREVENTION STRATEGY

The Committee again welcomed, Tim Mills, Executive Head of Property and Growth,
Zoe Paine, Strategy and Enabling Manager, and Sarah Clark, Strategic Housing
Officer, who were in attendance to report on the Housing and Homelessness
Prevention Strategy. Report No. PG2417, set out the aims of the strategy which was
in place to ensure all residents had access to good quality housing at all stages of
life and could access a range of appropriate support and advice to deal with housing
related issues, including preventing homelessness and maintaining housing
standards.

The Strategy had three themes, and the progress against each was set out in the
report. It was advised that Service and Technical Managers had included action
points within their service plans to enable effective progress tracking and reporting.
Cross team collaboration and a project management approach to delivery had
ensured that actions were appropriately planned for and resourced. The approach
also ensured a greater transparency of monitoring and reporting.

The Board discussed the Report and the following comments/queries were made:

Page 2



e With regard to the delivery of housing need, what is the number of stalled
developments in the Borough? How many developments are started but not
completed? and, how many have not been started to date?

e What is the amount of SANG available after 2032?

e Data required to help understanding of future reports:

o Affordability of housing on a local and national level
o Local employment data

e Use of social media for engagement with young people — is it the correct
platform, what will we learn from it? Use of local charities, such as Step by
Step and church organisations, to assist with engaging with young people

e Extend engagement to a wider audience, such as the Nepalese community,
the elderly, disabled residents, carers, those suffering from mental health
issues etc.

¢ |s the Council on track to provide the right number of affordable homes?

e How many people are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless, in
the Borough?

e Recommendation to request that the Cabinet review the Housing and
Homelessness Prevention Strategy

It was advised that the additional requests for data would be added to the
Committee’s action tracker and shared with officers. The request to review the
strategy had been noted and a meeting of the Progress Group would be identified to
scope the purpose of the review.

The Chairman thanked, Mr Mills and Ms’ Paine and Clark for their Reports.
APPOINTMENTS 2024/25

RESOLVED: That the following Members be appointed to serve on the following
Groups for the 2024/25 Municipal Year:

Overview and Scrutiny Progress Group

Chairman ClIr Halleh Koohestani
Vice-Chairmen CliIr S. Trussler
Labour Group Clir Thomas Day

Cllr C.P. Grattan

CliIr Bill O’'Donovan
Conservative Group Clir P.J. Cullum
Liberal Democrat CllIr Leola Card

Council Tax Support Task and Finish Group

Vice-Chairman Cllr S. Trussler

Labour Group Cllr C.P. Grattan
CllIr Lisa Greenway
Clir M.J. Roberts

Conservative Group Clir P.J. Cullum

Page 3



Farnborough Airport Task and Finish Group

Chairmen ClIr Halleh Koohestani
Labour Group Clir A.H. Crawford
* CliIr Bill O'Donovan
Conservative Group Clir P.J. Cullum

Cllr G.B. Lyon
Liberal Democrat ClIr C. Card

*CllIr Jules Crossley would be invited to the meeting as and when appropriate

Review of Registered Providers Task and Finish Group

Chairman Clir Halleh Koohestani
Labour Group Cllr Gaynor Austin
Clir Bill O'Donovan
Conservative Group Cllr S.J Masterson
Cllr M.D. Smith
WORK PLAN

The Committee noted the current Work Plan and the proposed items for the August
and September meetings. In August SERCO would be attending the meeting and in
September, the Police and Community Safety Team would be in attendance.

Following a discussion, the items below would be considered by the Progress Group
at their first meeting:

Financial Position/CIPFA Report

Key Priorities for the New Leadership
Union Yard

Leisure Facilities

Hampshire Highways

Water Quality

The meeting closed at 9.21 pm.

CLLR HALLEH KOOHESTANI (CHAIRMAN)

Page 4



Serco

Serco and Rushmoor Partnership

Annual Report April 2023 - March 2024

()]
mr
£ md
Rl
° =

Impact
f



Impact Pathway

Our unique methodology embraces

erco

Serco. Your Solutions Partner.

We bring together the right people, Our core capabilities include

the right technology and the right service design and advisory,

partners to create innovative solutions resourcing, complex programme

that make positive impact and address management, systems integration, case

some of the most urgent and complex management, engineering, and asset &

challenges facing the modern world. facilities management.

With a focus on serving governments Our power to drive innovation and GIObaI data and inSightS

globally, Serco's services span justice, support customers from service

migration, defence, space, customer discovery through to delivery is We draw cn a global pool of data,

services, health, and transport. underpinned by Serco’s unique _ L;::k:dgb‘; mf;:nciab\e Feaiarn e
operating model, which features L P e s

three components:

Purpose

The partner of choice
to governments globally

Mission
CITe RS [SIL Tl the right people

the right technology and

the right partners [RTeReIRVNE I AR T oETw

Values
Innovation
Contacts
Ruth Whaymand Aaron Straker
Contract Manager - Operations Contract Manager
Rushmoor Borough Council Serco Environmental Services
ruth.whaymand@rushmoor.gov.uk aaron.straker@serco.com
Page 6

2 | Serco and Rushmoor Partnership | Annual Report April 2023 - March 2024



Contents

ContractOverview ............coviiiinnn. 4
1.0 Waste Collection Services.................. 5
1.1 Refuse, Recycling and Garden Waste ........ 5
1.2 FoodWaste ........ ... ... 7
2.0 CleansingServices ..........coviviiieian. 8
3.0 Grounds Maintenance.................... 10
4.0 People Metrics and Health & Safety ........ 1"
4.1 Employee Engagement................... 11
4.2 Health&Safety ......... ... ... ... ..... 12
4.3 BackinAction ....... .. .. 13
5.0 Recycling and Diversion .................. 14
6.0 CarbonReduction........................ 15
7.0 AddedValue ........... ... oLt 16
7.1  Environmental Ambassadors. .............. 16
7.2 Recycle Week 2023. ........... ... ... .... 16
7.3 Love Your ChristmasVeg .................. 17
7.4 Battery Fires Campaign ................... 17
7.5 Garden Waste Subscriptions............... 18
7.6 Love Rushmoor’App’ ..................... 18
7.7 Guaranteed Minimum Income.............. 18
8.0 KeyRisks...........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiit 19

Page 7

Annual Report April 2023 - March 2024 | Serco and Rushmoor Partnership | 3



Contract Overview

Serco has delivered waste collection services, street cleansing services and grounds
maintenance services on behalf of Rushmoor Borough Council since 2017. Included in
these services are clinical waste collections, toilet cleansing, grave digging, sports pitch
bookings and fly tip removal.

We are proud to deliver these services to approximately 42,410 households, this includes approximately 500 of which
are some of our more vulnerable residents who require extra help with their waste collections which are delivered
through the assisted collection service. This equates to 367,553 refuse, recycling, and food waste collections a month
with a further 28,316 garden waste collections each month.

We are committed to ensuring we operate an inclusive workplace that embraces and promotes diversity. We know
these are key factors in our ability to make a positive difference every day to those we work with, and for. We are
therefore proud to have attained Serco’s Inclusive Employers Silver Accreditation for 2023.

Our 82 strong permanent workforce, is supplemented with an agency contingency team who cover seasonal work
such as leafing and grass cutting, as well as the months we have increased garden waste tonnage, our services are
designed and tested to ensure we always deliver to the highest standards and quality.

We pride ourselves on the services we deliver and the standards we achieve, of the over 360,000 collections we
deliver monthly less than 60 bins are missed across refuse, recycling, and garden waste collections, we also empty
approximately 800 litter bins per week and consistently achieve or surpass our KPI targets for litter and detritus.

\ R \, N

—

L= i




1.0 Waste Collection services

1.1 Refuse, Recycling and Garden Waste

We currently operate three refuse rounds and three recycling rounds using 26t refuse collection vehicles (RCV),

the recycling rounds operate using a split back vehicle, which has two separate compartments meaning glass and
recycling be collected separately in one pass. All rounds are crewed with a driver and two loaders each of which carry
out approximately 1,200 collections a day. We also operate a narrow access round on Mondays utilising a smaller
vehicle to collect from all the properties across the borough that cannot be accessed by our larger vehicles.

Garden Waste is a paid for service that residents can subscribe to, currently there are more than 13,000 active
subscriptions. Collections are fortnightly and delivered all year round by two dedicated vehicles one of which is a 32t
RCV and the other is 26t RCV, an additional seasonal vehicle is used to support these collections during the months
that tonnages are at their peak, this vehicle is crewed by a driver and one loader.

Missed Collections are reported via the customer portal on the Rushmoor Borough Council website or via phone call
to Rushmoor customer services, these are then logged into our Management Information System (MIS), Whitespace,
in real time. Throughout the previous year less than 0.02% of all refuse, recycling and garden waste collections were

reported as missed.

Missed collections

60

50

40

30

20

July August September October November ~ December January February March April May June
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024

Using In-cab devices the

crews can log exceptions

whilst completing the rounds

in real time, such as bin not
presented for collection, bin
contaminated, excess waste left,
these exceptions update the
customer portal for residents to
see but also provides Rushmoor
customer services with the
information needed to have
informed conversations with
residents.

Page 9
Annual Report April 2023 - March 2024 | Serco and Rushmoor Partnership | 5




The assisted collections we deliver to, approximately 500 addresses, are highlighted on the in-cab devices, this
combined with our stable and established workforce, means that local round knowledge is strong, meaning missed
assisted collections are very rare. When they occasionally occur, this is usually due to a change of round personnel
because of sickness, annual leave or because the assisted collection is brand new and not yet understood. Any

missed collections are closely monitored and supervisor intervention occurs prior to the next collection to avoid any
further misses at the same address.

Missed assisted collection

5

4

3

2

1

0
July August September October November ~ December January February March April May June
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024

VEI7LLF

I R4
| Annual Report April 2023 - March 2024

AN



1.2 Food Waste

The food waste collection service was introduced in Rushmoor in October 2021, most properties use a 23L kerbside
caddy with communal properties having the option to recycle food waste in communal food waste bins. This is a
weekly collection service and Serco operate three x 7.5t food waste collection vehicles crewed by a driver and two
loaders. The collection method for food waste differs from the other collection services as loaders use a transfer bin to
collect multiple caddies before returning to the vehicle, rather than taking each 23| caddy to the vehicle. This allows
the operation to be more efficient and each round collect from approximately 2,200 properties per day. Food waste is
taken for anaerobic digestion at Herriard Bio Power, Basingstoke.

Food waste missed collections are reported in the same way as all other collections and crews have the same in-cab
devices for reporting. Food waste misses are measured as a figure per 100,000 collections, the current target is 20 per
100,000 but this is currently under review. Throughout the previous year less than 0.03% of all food waste collections
were reported as missed.

Missed food collections

80

70

60

50

40

30

July August September October November ~ December January February March April May June
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024

Missed assisted food waste collections are rare but do fluctuate more than the other collection services partly because
some residents present on an ad-hoc basis and the small caddies can be hard to locate, additional attention from the
collections supervisor is in place to mitigate.

Missed assisted food collections

July August September October November ~ December January February March April May June
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024
Page 11

Annual Report April 2023 - March 2024 | Serco and Rushmoor Partnership | 7



2.0 Cleansing Services

The Cleansing Service operates several cage vehicles, mechanical sweepers, town centre barrow beats, a cleansing
hit squad and toilet operatives. This team ensure that 800 litter bins across the borough are emptied on a range of
frequencies from daily to once a week, toilets are opened/closed and cleaned seven days a week and streets and
open spaces are litter picked and swept both manually and mechanically. The team also delivers reactive tasks such as
dead animal removal, sharps removal and fly tip collection as required.

Members of public can raise street cleansing issues via the Love Rushmoor app, these are then investigated by the
Rushmoor Borough Council officers and passed to Serco via the Management Information System (MIS) Whitespace
in real time for action. Using mobile devices, the Serco Street cleansing team action the ticket and confirm job
completion.

Litter bins full complete

60

50

40

30

20

59 I 17 I 14 I 24 I 11 I 1 I 18 I 14 I 14 I 16 I 14 I 15
0

July August September October November ~ December January February March April May June

2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024

Litter or sweeping issue complete

35

30

25

20

July August September October November ~ December January February March April May June
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024

The Contract Key Performance Indicator for Litter is 4% and detritus is 10%,
this is scored by a third party three times a year.

Page 12
8 | Serco and Rushmoor Partnership | Annual Report April 2023 - March 2024




Year Tranche | Litter Detritus

2017-18 T3 5% 9%
T 0% 8%

2018-19 T2 1% 8%
T3 1% 11%
T1 0% 7%

2019-20 T2 2% 8%
T3 3% 9%
T 2% 9%

2020-21 T2 1% 9%
T3 2% 8%
T 2% 7%

2021-22 T2 1% 8%
T3 2% 6%
T 3% 7%

PRI T2 3% 9%
T3 2% 6%
T 2% 9%

2023-24 T2 3% 5%
T3 3% 10%

20% -

18% -

16% -

14% |

12% -

10%

~e-Litter —+-Detritus

8%

6%

4% +

2% -

0% ¥ ¥

P E R P EREEREERPEEREPRERC

Page 13
Annual Report April 2023 - March 2024 | Serco and Rushmoor Partnership | 9




3.0 Grounds Maintenance

The Serco Grounds maintenance team take great pride in their work with most of the
team having been on the contract for 15+ years. Serco manage and maintain parks and
open space areas in accordance with a combination of best operating practice, industry
standards and specific requirements of Rushmoor Borough Council. The teams operate
out of two depots, located at Manor Park Aldershot and the Grove Farnborough. Our
grounds maintenance operatives are multiskilled taking on a range of tasks such as
planting, hedge cutting, grass cutting and more. This approach enables a more flexible
and responsive way of working for the team which has been particularly necessary

with the annual changes in weather seen in recent years. The team take environmental
impacts into consideration, enabling a flexible approach to the scheduling of tasks

for example in a warm wet year it is all hands to mowing as soon as the ground is firm
enough to hold the weight of the large equipment without causing damage, hedge
cutting also becomes a priority come June as growth can start to overgrow footpaths.

Within the grounds maintenance team, we also have a dedicated sports pitch
maintenance groundsman responsible for such tasks as renovations, line marking,
seeding, topsoil and other repairs. There is also a dedicated COTS 2 trained cemeteries
team responsible for digging of graves and general maintenance. The grounds
maintenance team operate a fleet of 3.5t flatbed vehicles, ride on mowers, tractors,
diggers, and dumpers along with various types of pedestrian mowers and hand tools.

At the Council's request in 2022 changes were made to the ground’s maintenance
specification in line with the Council’s environmental agenda, this involved the removal
of chemical treatment for weeds and a reduction to grass cutting specification, shrub
bed and hard surface maintenance.

The grass cutting season of 2024 has been challenging due to a warm and wet period,
ideal weather for the grass to grow, the initial rain made it difficult to cut and keep on
top of the growth borough wide. The wet weather affected both the quality of the cut
as well as rendering the ground too soft to be able to support the weight of the grass
cutting machinery without damaging the open spaces. Unfortunately, we experienced
a spike in staff attrition within the grounds team as grass cutting began, these vacant
positions have now been filled but the initial resourcing gap did effect productivity at a
key time.

The key performance indicators for Grounds maintenance are 15 or fewer non-
performance, by way of example failure to provide a service as per specification,
in one month and 95% or higher compliance with the specification.

B—

N b ! "A‘ ) »
= v

Page 14 el ‘
S Annual Report April 2023 - March 2024
’

o
Our grounds

maintenance
operatives are
multiskilled
taking on

a range of
tasks such

as planting,
hedge and
grass cutting
and more.




4.0 People Metrics and Health & Safety

Serco currently employ 82 staff on the Rushmoor environmental services contract across 3 services including the
management team. Amongst others the typical roles on the contract are loader, HGV driver, town centre operative,
toilet operative, grave digger, groundsman, sports pitch groundsman.

4.1 Employee Engagement

Serco runs an independent, anonymous employee engagement survey annually in September enabling all
employees to share their experiences of working within Serco and let us know what we are doing well and importantly
what we could do better.

Within the Rushmoor contract a response rate of 76% was achieved during the 2023 survey and some positive scores
were achieved in the following areas, scored out of 100.

79

79

77

77

77

73

71

Customer Focus
Where | work, we provide a high level of service to our customers/service users.

Communication - Manager
My manager communicates effectively.

Well-being - Manager
My manager takes a genuine interest in my well-being.

Health & Safety
Health and safety is taken seriously where | work.

Feedback
My manager provides me with feedback that helps support my performance.

Role
My role is an excellent fit with my strengths.

Procedures
Where | work, the work is well organized (processes and procedures, orderly work environment, etc.).

Page 15

Annual Report April 2023 - March 2024 | Serco and Rushmoor Partnership | 11



Areas for improvement were also highlighted which form the basis of both our contract and divisional action plan.

47 Prospects
| am excited about Serco's future.
| | Growth
| have good opportunities to learn and grow at Serco.
42 Career

| have good career oppertunities at Serco.

3 6 Action Taking
| believe meaningful action will be taken as a result of this survey.

4.2 Health & Safety

Health and safety is unashamedly, and always will be, our key priority within Serco, we are committed to a Zero Harm
approach to safety. Our mantra is thinking safe, work safe, home safe, there has been significant investment in Health
and Safety in 2023/24 which supports our commitment to ensuring everyone goes home safely. Safety observations
and near miss reporting are actively encouraged and promoted, we know that the more observations and safety
considerations we carry out, the number of incidents reduce. This is something that we are extremely passionate
about both on site and across Serco.

In Month Year to date
performance (Lagging) Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 Monthl - jun-22  Jun-23 Jun-24 YD
Lost Time Incident Frq. Rate (LTIFR) 7229 000 000 000N 000 000 1091
Lost Time Incidents 1 0 o e o 0 1
Working Days Lost per Worker (WDLW) ~ 0.02  0.28  0.11 |[W025% 0.00 000 0.7
Working Days Lost in Month 2 0 o e o 0 40
Major Injury Frq. Rate (MRIFR) 0.00 000 000 (000 000 000 0.0
Major Injury Incidents 0 0 o e o 0 0
Serious Physical Assault Frq. Rate (SPAFR)  0.00  0.00  0.00 [H000 000 000  0.00
Serious Physical Assaults 0 0 o e o 0 0
Physical Assault Frq. Rate (PAFR) 0.00 000 000 OGO 00 00 00
Physical Assaults 0 0 o e o 0 0
HSE Reportable (RIDDOR) Incidents 0 0 o e o 0 0

In Month Totals Year to date
Cultural (Leading) Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 MTZ?Q';? Jun-22 Jun-23 Jun-24
Safety Observations 4 5 3 - 4 27 27
Zero Harm Engagement 5 2 1 0 41 19
Incidents Open > 30 days (%) 0% 0% 0% (S9N 0% 0% 0%
Page 16

12 | Serco and Rushmoor Partnership | Annual Report April 2023 - March 2024



Lost Time Incidents and Major Injury Incidents by Month
@ Lost Time Incidents @ Major Injury Inddents
T
1
0 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 00 ) 0 0 0 0 00 ) 0 0 0 0 0 00
r Jun
Zero Harm Engagement (YTD) Incidents Open > 30 days
’ an-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 pe-24  May-24 " § . i
@ Salety Observations Last YTD @ Safety Observations YTD @ Inspections Planned YTD @Inspactions Conducted YTD @Open > 30 days YTD @ Open > 30 days

LTI - Unfortunately there has been a Lost Time Incident in April 2024 where a loader trapped their hand behind the
handle of a garden waste bin as it began to lift on the back of the RCV, the loader managed to free their hand before
being lifted off the ground but the entrapment and pulling on the wrist and hand did cause a nasty sprain resulting
in time off work for that employee. This was the first accident of this kind on contract, the incident was investigated to
ensure we understand the root cause enabling informed discussions which fed into lessons that could be learned to
avoid future incidents.

The Serco team hold a bi-monthly Health & Safety meeting where representatives from the front-line team sit down
with the contract manager and the Health & Safety advisor to discuss current Health & Safety performance, raise any
concerns, present ideas for improvement and any key topics that have arisen.

We have a very open and strong relationship with our employees, and they are encouraged to raise any concerns
directly with supervisors and managers either in person or via the safety observation app on there in-cab/mobile
device. Should any of the team not feel comfortable doing details of the Serco speak up line, where any concerns can
be raised anonymously, are also shared.

We also hold Health & Safety roadshows which include safety suppliers and the wider Serco management /leadership,
to which all staff are invited and welcome.

4.3 Backin Action

In the past year ‘Back in Action’ physiotherapist services

° o
have been employed on the Rushmoor contract. The B a C k ' n Act l o nUK

aim of this free service is to help our team remain fit and i -
well, it is promoted internally and open to everyone. Keeplng workplaces moving
Any member of the team can book in to see the

physiotherapist for any physical issues not just work-

related injuries, its well-used and highly thought of by the

feam. | ANNNN\NY

N

E
>
cC
~
>
A
m




5.0 Recycling and Diversion

Serco and Rushmoor Borough Council work in partnership to improve recycling rates and increase waste diversion.
This is achieved through day-to-day activities such as our crews reporting contamination, enabling resident education
and ensuring recycling loads are not refused at the tip as a result of contamination. This is supplemented with bigger
projects such as the introduction of food waste recycling. Additional support is also provided during council led
campaigns, for example during the food waste launch leaflets were delivered to residents by Serco staff. This is due to
be repeated later with a plan in place for Serco staff to sticker refuse bins in support of Rushmoor Borough Councils
food waste re-engagement campaign. The Serco communications team have also supported events by providing eye
catching promotional materials.

2016/17 26.6%

2017/18 29.0% Collection of Kerbside small WEEE

2018/19 29.0%

2019/20 29.6%

2020/21 31.9% 5 months of Alternate week collections (AWC) due to COVID-19
2021/22 36.8% AWC and food waste Phase 1 (low rise properties) 25/10/2021
2022/23 41.7% Food Waste Phase 2 (Communal properties) Mar - Dec 2022

0@

The Serco communications team have also
supported events by providing eye catching |
promotional materials. =

Page 18 X
14 | Serco and Rushmoor Partnership | Annual Report April 2023 - March 2024




6.0 Carbon Reduction

Since the start of the contract Serco have utilised three
electric vans to support operations across toilet cleansing .‘
and grounds maintenance operations within the

cemeteries. The RCV fleet introduced in 2017 is Euro 6 The results Of the

compliant and equipped with low carbon electric lifts.

In early 2024 Serco paired with VEV and RVS to trial tI‘ial SuggeSt that

a refurbished and repowered diesel refuse collection

vehicle (RCV) into as-new electric vehicle adding further ConverSion Of the 6
carbon emission savings in terms of manufacturing. DomeStiC Refuse and

The aim of the pilot was to demonstrate the feasibility for

electrifying the recycling and refuse fleet in Rushmoor Recycling Vehicles

along with the significant emissions and noise reducing

benefits the use of this electric vehicle brought to CO'[]_]_d_ remove

residents living in the pilot areas.

The initial trial demonstrated that the domestic Refuse 1757000 kg Of tallplpe
and Recycling rounds within Rushmoor are suitable for emiSSiOIlS per annum.

using refurbished and electrified RCVs, but currently
Garden waste rounds are out of scope due to the
additional mileage these vehicles need to travel to tip
this waste in Basingstoke. However, Serco are continuing
to explore other options with VEV and RVS for electrifying
the Garden waste vehicles, such as increased battery size
and the installation of additional charging infrastructure.

The results of the trial suggest that conversion of the 6
Domestic Refuse and Recycling vehicles could remove
175,000 kg of tailpipe emissions per annum.

USHMOOR
BOROUGH COUNCIL

Powering zero-emission
waste collection in your community

Find out more: vev.com

| FUTURE  Designed by EMC
JINSIDE™ D lver

R
serco



7.0 Added Value

7.1 Environmental Ambassadors

One of the added value initiatives at the start of

the contract was the introduction of Community
Champions, despite everyone's best efforts this initiative
struggled to maintain traction. In partnership with

the Rushmoor waste team Serco’s communications
team explored a range of community based options
jointly developing Environmental Ambassadors as a
wider encompassing alternative. The new scheme was
designed with the purpose of enabling and supporting
more residents who wanted to make a positive change
in their communities to become proactively involved
and support biodiversity locally.

7.2 Recycle Week 2023

In support of National Recycling Week in October, the Serco communications team developed “Missed Capture”
posters in a range of styles to attract different age groups along with social media collateral. The posters were used by
the Rushmoor waste team at face-to-face events to inspire Rushmoor young recyclers to create their own posters to
encourage others to recycle.

Page 20

Environment

al

Ambassadors

www.rushmoor.gov.uk/recycling-rubbish-and-environment/environmental-ambassadors

serco

LWS

EXTRA! EXTRA! HOUSEHOLD FOOD
WASTE MISSING FROM FOOD CADDIES!

WANTED BY LOCAL AUTHORITIES last spotted
heading towards general household waste. Local
authorities have advised residents that foods,
including teabags, coffee grounds and pet food,
should be correctly disposed of in their food waste
caddics. Should you find moldy food or dinner
scrapings in your home, it is advised that these can
also be disposed in your food waste caddy. Should
you find an item in your home and are unsure if they
are wanted, please visit your local authority website
where you will find a list of items wanted by food
waste recycling.

LESS HATERS,
MORE TATERS.

EX

INTERVIEW WITH
ONE OF THE TOP 5
WASTED FOODS

T jusl don'l
understand why so
many of us arc
wasted every year"

THE REALI-"TEA"
OF RECYCLING
TEA BAGS &

GROUNDS

16 | Serco and Rushmoor Partnership | Annual Report April 2023 - March 2024



7.3 Love Your Christmas Veg

The Serco communications team created “Love Your Christmas Veg” games and activities to help reduce food waste
over the festive period. These were used to both support a series of face-to-face events run by the Rushmoor waste
team as well as a Christmas social media campaign.

serco
Word-search . :
S J u ! C E Find Lhe following words in the word-sezrch :r;;o:zlm-.: ':;I'd_“
JUICE - CAKE - ROAST - SOUP - STICKS - z = = :

T Q M A S H W ASH Christmas...

| H N K X A with ___ reillien of thase
wastad,

c L | E' B Z -
Ta recuce weste, s
racommendrd  to conk

K R (0] A S T \‘ I, b, arams of sprouts

Ssioju|pP|C D e’“ .k

Twist and sprout

| carrot get enough i
Love ymﬁ Christmas vgeg Love your Christmas Veg

7.4 Battery Fires Campaign
Artwork has also been created to remind residents batteries can start fires and to signpost them to the correct way to

dispose of them.

Find out how to dispose of hatteries safely at:

www.rushmoor.gov.uk/hatteryrecycling SHMORR  serco

Page 21
Annual Report April 2023 - March 2024 | Serco and Rushmoor Partnership | 17




7.5 Garden Waste Subscriptions

From the start of the contract Serco have been committed to supporting the authority
with the growth of the Garden waste service. So much so that the first 1,000 additional
garden waste subscribers were incorporated into the rounds at no extra cost to the
Council.

7.6 Love Rushmoor App

The “Love Rushmoor App” has been sponsored by Serco, the App allows members of
the public to report environmental hots spots or issues such as fly tips, litter and dog
mess. The reports are logged with the council team, which in turn are sent to Serco's
street cleansing teams to action service via our Management Information system (MIS)
Whitespace. When the job is marked as complete by the street cleansing teams and
time and date stamped are automatically added to the electronic worksheet.

7.7 Guaranteed Minimum Income.

Rushmoor Borough Council are guaranteed an income from 3rd party revenue of
£700K over the life of the 10-year contract to be off set against core revenue.

The Council are guaranteed a further £500K over the life of the 10-year contract from
commercial waste services also to be off set against core revenue. Our commercial
waste services currently service 213 customers in and around the borough of
Rushmoor.

Our commercial waste services
currently service 213 customers in and
around the borough of Rushmoor.

Page 22

18 | Serco and Rushmoor Partnership | Annual Report April 2023 - March 2024




8.0 Key Risks

Now in the 7th year of the 10-year contract term, the
vehicle fleet is starting to show signs of age. To mitigate
this risk to the operation, the Serco workshop team

will be carrying out a full assessment of each vehicle
for suggested remedial works beyond the usual
maintenance levels.

On site stock of parts will also be increased to account for
trends in part failures due to the age and mileage levels,
this will be both reactive to faults as they occur (next day
delivery) but also proactive from data gathered on other
Serco fleets of a similar age and mileage. Serco also work
closely with many vehicle hire companies, so that hire
vehicles can be sourced quickly to cover any longer-term
issues.




Serco "

WWW.Serco.com



Gz abed

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PLAN

The purpose of the work plan is to plan, manage and co-ordinate the ongoing activity and progress of the Council’s Overview and
Scrutiny Committee. It will be updated regularly and presented to each meeting of the Committee. It will include issues that are
currently being actioned as well as those that will be subject to future work.

The Committees Terms of Reference are as follows:

o to perform all overview and scrutiny functions on behalf of the Council;

o to appoint such formal sub-committees and informal task and finish groups as it considers necessary to assist it in
discharging its functions;

o to prepare and approve the overview and scrutiny work programme so as to ensure that the Committee’s time is
effectively and efficiently utilised;

o to undertake investigations into such matters relating to the Council’s functions and powers as:
(1) may be referred by the Council, Committees, the Cabinet, or the Leader; or
(2) the Committee may consider appropriate; or
(3) have been referred to the Committee pursuant to the “call-in” procedure set out in the Overview and

Scrutiny Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution. (These can be decisions taken by the Cabinet, a
Cabinet Member, key decisions taken by an officer or under joint arrangements).

o to monitor and review the performance of the Council and services against relevant performance indicators and adopted
plans;

Last Updated 24/07/2024

€ 'ON N1l VANIDV



9z abed

o to review and/or scrutinise decisions proposed to be made (pre-decision scrutiny) or actions taken in connection with
the discharge of any of the Council’s functions;

o to review existing policy and strategy with a view to securing continuous improvement in the way in which the Council’s
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness;

. to make reports and/or recommendations to the full Council and/or the Cabinet in connection with the discharge of any
functions;

o to review and/or scrutinise any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants;

. to discuss initiatives put forward for consideration by individual members of the Committee and any relevant ‘call-for-

action’ in accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution; and

o to consider petitions referred to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in accordance with provisions set out in the
Petition Scheme set out in Part 4 of this Constitution.

Last Updated 24/07/2024



/¢ abed

(A) ISSUES CURRENTLY BEING PROGRESSED BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE TASK AND FINISH

GROUPS

ISSUE (PURPOSE OF
REVIEW)

TASK AND
GROUP
(MEMBERSHIP 2024/25)

FINISH

CURRENT WORK

To monitor the
performance and
activities of Registered
Providers working in
the Borough.

Clirs Gaynor Austin,
Halleh Koohestani
(Chair), S.J. Masterson,
Bill O’'Donovan and M.D.
Smith.

To review the Council
Tax Support Scheme

Clirs P.J. Cullum, C.P.
Grattan, Lisa Greenway,
M.J. Roberts and Stuart
Trussler (Vice-Chair)

To consider further the
economical and
environmental impacts
of Farnborough
Airport on the Borough.

Clirs Craig Card, A.H.
Crawford, P.J. Cullum,
Halleh Koohestani
(Chair), G.B. Lyon and
Bill O’'Donovan with Clir
Jules Crossley (Policy,
Climate & Sustainability
Portfolio Holder) as an
invitee as required.

Last Updated 24/07/2024




gz abed

(B) OTHER ISSUES CURRENTLY BEING PROGRESSED BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

ISSUE

CURRENT WORK

Arts and Culture

At its November meeting the Committee were apprised of the work being undertaken in
conjunction with the Hampshire Cultural Trust and Arts Council England on arts and cultural
activity on the Borough. A further meeting would be held on this item in 6-12 months.

Asset Management

At its meeting in January 2024, the Committee received a presentation detailing progress on the
Asset Management Strategy and future delivery, and a review of the portfolio and principles of
disposal in light of the budget.

A watching briefing would be maintained on progress during the 2024/25 Municipal Year.

Cabinet Champions

The two Cabinet Champions attended the meeting in March to provide a report on their work and
activities during 2023/24. The work of both Champions was noted and the recommended
priorities for 2024/25 endorsed.

Last Updated 24/07/2024




OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
WORKFLOW — June 2024- March 2025

DATE ITEMS

13th June 2024 Registered Providers T&F Annual Report
Housing and Homelessness Prevention Strategy

1st August 2024 SERCO

12th September 2024 Financial Matters/CIPFA Report

19th September 2024 Police and Community Safety

24th October 2024

12th December 2024

30th January 2025

27th March 2025

Potential Future

¢ Climate Change Action Plan (inc. water quality)
Items for the e Community and Youth Engagement
Committee in e Highways issues — HCC
2024/25 e Housing and Homelessness Prevention Strategy
(Part 2)
e Leader of the Council — Priorities (when appropriate)
e Property — Disposals Update
¢ Risk Register
e Union Yard — Lettings
e Ward Grant & Charitable Support (CA/RVS)

Last Updated 24/07/2024

Page 29



0g abed

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Progress Meetings 2024/25

Membership: Clir Leola Card, P.J. Cullum, Thomas Day, Clive Grattan, Halleh Koohestani (Chair), Bill O’'Donovan and Stuart

Trussler (Vice Chair)

DATE

ITEM

NOTES

02.07.2024

SERCO - scoping of
item for 1 August

Housing and
Homelessness
Prevention Strategy —
request to Cabinet to
review the strategy
(June 13 meeting)

Annual report will be finalised — a summary of the report will be presented at the
meeting
Areas of concern include,
- grass cutting changes and impacts (rewilding)
- Waste Management — what are the %’s and how can we improve? Consider
national changes due in 2027
- Focus on key services provided - how can we improve? / cost / effectiveness /
performance against KPI's
- Renewal of contract
- Benchmarking against other councils

Important to review the data requested at the meeting prior to making a decision on a
review of the strategy by the Cabinet. Data will provide context to those carrying out a
review to determine if the strategy is achievable/objectives realistic.

Cabinet Member minded to review anyway, is it better to wait until any changes have
been made? Could offer engagement services from the Committee as part of the
review.

ACTION - follow up on request for data — AT/ZP

ACTION - data request — how long are people in temp accommodation? How do we
move people from temp to permanent accommodation?

Last Updated 24/07/2024




T¢ abed

Police and Community
Safety - September 19
meeting

Future items for
consideration

Produce list of asks for the Chief Inspector and Community Safety Team at next PG
meeting.

A list has been added to the Potential items above.

15.08.2024

Financial Matters /
CIPFA Report - PV

Police and Community
Safety

Last Updated 24/07/2024




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	2 DELIVERY OF KEY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES - RUSHMOOR  BOROUGH COUNCIL & SERCO IN PARTNERSHIP
	3 Work Plan



